Minutes of Planning and Development Committee

Meeting Date: Thursday, 26 October 2017 starting at 6.30pm

Present: Councillor A Brown (Chairman)

Councillors:

S Atkinson J Rogerson
S Brunskill I Sayers
P Dowson R Sherras
M French R Swarbrick
G Geldard D Taylor
S Hind N Walsh

S Knox

In attendance: Director of Community Services, Head of Planning Services, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, Principal Planning Officer and Assistant Planning Officer.

Also in attendance: Councillor M Fenton.

367 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence from the meeting were submitted on behalf of Councillor I Brown.

368 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 28 September 2017 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

369 DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND NON-PECUNIARY INTEREST

Councillor G Geldard declared an interest in planning application 3/2017/0573.

370 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was no public participation.

371 PLANNING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990:

APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0184
 GRID REF: SD 374353 441579

WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA

2. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0700 GRID REF: SD 366774 431520

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

FULL AND PARTIAL DEMOLITION OF AGRICULTURAL BUILDINGS AND ERECTION OF THREE DETACHED, TWO-STOREY HOLIDAY COTTAGES AT CUNLIFFE MOSS FARM, SACCARY LANE, MELLOR

APPROVED subject to the imposition of the following condition(s):

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings:

Ain/798/2261/01 Ain/798/2261/02 Ain/798/2261/03 Ain/798/2261/04 Ain/798/2261/05

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

3. Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, the development hereby approved shall be carried out in complete accordance with the materials detailed on approved drawings:

Ain/798/2261/01 Ain/798/2261/02 Ain/798/2261/03

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Key Statement EN2, and Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

4. Prior to commencement of any site works including delivery of building materials and excavations for foundations or services, all the existing/retained trees and hedging shown on approved drawing Ain/798/2261/04 shall have been enclosed with temporary protective fencing in accordance with BS5837:2012 [Trees in Relation to Demolition, Design & Construction] which is to be inspected on site by the Local Planning Authority. The fencing shall be retained during the period of construction and no work, excavation, tipping, or stacking/storage of materials shall take place within such protective fencing during the construction period.

REASON: To protect the existing vegetation in the interest of visual amenity in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DME2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

5. Notwithstanding the provisions The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (England) Order 2015, or any equivalent Order following the revocation and re-enactment thereof (with or without modification), the holiday cottages hereby approved shall only be used as holiday accommodation and for no other purpose, including any other purpose within Use Class C3.

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt, and to avoid an over-intensive use and to ensure that the development remains compatible with the character of the area and the intensity and frequency of usage remains proportionate to the use hereby approved in accordance with Policies DMG1, DME2, DMB1 and DMB3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

6. The holiday cottages hereby approved shall not be used as a unit of permanent accommodation or any individual(s) sole place of residence. A register of all occupants/owners of the holiday cottages hereby approved shall be maintained at all times and shall be made available for inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request. For the avoidance of doubt the register shall contain the name and address of the principal occupier/owner(s) together with all dates of occupation.

REASON: To ensure that the development remains compatible with the character of the area and the intensity and frequency of usage remains proportionate to the use hereby approved in accordance with Policies DMG1, DME2, DMB1 and DMB3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

7. Notwithstanding the provisions of Classes A to H of Part 1 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order, the holiday cottages hereby permitted shall not be altered or extended, no new windows shall be inserted (including rooflights) and no additional buildings or structures shall be erected within its external area unless planning permission has first been granted by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over development which could materially harm the character and visual amenities of the development and locality and the amenities of nearby residents in accordance with Key Statement EN2 and Policies DMG1 and DME2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

8. The car parking and manoeuvring areas (as shown on approved drawing Ain/798/2261/04) shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plan before the holiday cottages hereby approved are first brought into use and shall be permanently maintained as such thereafter.

REASON: To allow for the effective use of the parking areas in accordance with Ribble Valley Core Strategy Policies DMG1 and DMG3.

9. No external lighting shall be installed on any structure hereby approved, or elsewhere within the site, without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. Details of any such lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to its installation. Only the duly approved lighting shall be installed on the buildings hereby approved.

REASON: In order to ensure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of visual amenity and to prevent nuisance arising in accordance with Key Statement EN2 and Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

10. For the full period of construction, facilities shall be available on site for the cleaning of the wheels of vehicles leaving the site and such equipment shall be used as necessary to prevent mud and stones being carried onto the highway. The roads adjacent to the site shall be mechanically swept as required during the full construction period.

REASON: To prevent stones and mud being carried onto the public highway to the detriment of road safety in accordance with Ribble Valley Core Strategy Policies DMG1 and DMG3.

11. No clearance of any vegetation in preparation for or during the course of development shall take place during the bird breeding season (March - August inclusive) unless an ecological survey has first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority which demonstrates that the vegetation to be cleared is not utilised for bird nesting. Should the survey reveal the presence of any nesting species, then no clearance of any vegetation shall take place during the bird breeding season until a methodology for protecting nest sites during the course of the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Nest site protection shall thereafter be provided in accordance with the duly approved methodology.

REASON: In order to prevent any habitat disturbance to nesting birds in accordance with the requirements of Ribble Valley Core Strategy Policy DME3 and the provisions of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the National Planning Policy Framework.

12. No development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the provisions to be made for building dependent species of conservation concern, artificial bird nesting boxes / artificial bat roosting sites have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the details shall identify the nature and type of the nesting boxes/artificial roosting sites and the locations(s) or wall and roof elevations into which the above provisions shall be incorporated.

The artificial bird/bat boxes shall made available for use before the holiday cottages hereby approved are first brought into use and thereafter retained. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and reduce the impact of development in accordance with Policies DMG1 and EN4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

13. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no building or engineering operations within the site or deliveries to and from the site shall take place other than between 07:30 hours and 18:00 hours Monday to Friday and between 08:30 hours and 14:00 hours on Saturdays, and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

REASON: In order to protect the amenities of existing residents in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

14. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems.

REASON: In order to reduce the risk of flooding in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

(Mr Hoerty spoke in favour of the above application).

3. APPLICATION REF: 3/2015/0750 GRID REF: SD 383312 446506

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

CHANGE OF USE OF LAND TO FORM EXTENSION TO EXISTING CARAVAN SITE FOR THE SITING OF A FURTHER 16 HOLIDAY CARAVANS. TODBER CARAVAN PARK, BURNLEY ROAD, GISBURN BB7 4JJ.

APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

1. The development must be begun no later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings:

Planting Plan: PP-0-01 Revision: 2

Proposed Block Plan (Option 02): 3579-253 Revision (March 2017)

Typical Lodge Elevations: 3579-260

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

3. Precise specifications or samples of all external surfaces, including all surfacing materials of the development hereby approved shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before their use in the proposed development.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality and to protect the character and appearance of the Defined Open Countryside in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

4. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the phasing for the siting of lodges, implementation of landscaping proposals, woodland planting and informal pedestrian trails/routes have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the submitted details shall indicate that the landscaping proposals and recreational/amenity routes shall be implemented in full prior to the siting of any lodge hereby approved. The submitted details shall also provide a detailed programme of timings for the implementation and completion of all landscaping elements and/or earthworks and a phasing plan (including timings) for the siting of each lodge following the full implementation of the aforementioned landscaping proposals.

The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the timings and details provided within the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that adequate visual mitigation is provided in advance of the siting of the proposed lodges and to ensure that the recreational areas/routes are delivered on an appropriately phased basis to ensure that adequate provision is provided to serve the occupants of the wider site and lodges/caravans hereby approved in accordance with Policies DMG1, DMG2 and DMB5 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

5. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until a landscape management plan, including long-term design objectives, management

responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the details shall also indicate that the landscaping proposals shall be maintained for a period of not less than 25 years to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. This maintenance shall include the replacement of any tree or shrub which is removed, or dies, or is seriously damaged, or becomes seriously diseased, by a species of similar size to those originally planted.

The landscape management of the site shall thereafter be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In order to ensure that the landscaping hereby approved is adequately and appropriately managed in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

6. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until full details of existing and proposed ground levels and proposed building/lodge floor and ridge height levels (all relative to ground levels adjoining the site) including the levels of the proposed roads have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the submitted information shall include existing and proposed sections through the site including details of the height, scale and location of proposed caravans/lodges in relation to adjacent landform. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory form of development that is visually compatible with the defined open countryside and in the interests of protecting the visual amenities and character of the area in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

7. Notwithstanding the provisions The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (England) Order 2015, or any equivalent Order following the revocation and re-enactment thereof (with or without modification), the lodge/caravan units hereby approved shall only be used as holiday accommodation and for no other purpose, including any other purpose within Use Class C3.

REASON: In order to limit occupation of the lodges/caravans to that of holiday use only and to define the scope of the permission. It is further considered that the condition is required to prevent the use of the lodges/caravans for permanent occupation which may lead to unsustainable patterns of development which would be of harm to the Development Strategy for the Borough and to ensure the development accords with Key

Statements DS1, DS2 and Policies DMG2 and DMH3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

- 8. The caravans/lodges hereby approved shall not be occupied otherwise in accordance with the following terms:
 - A. The caravans/lodges shall be occupied for holiday purposes only
 - B. The caravans/lodges shall not be occupied as any persons or individuals sole or main place of residence
 - C. The owners/operators of the site shall maintain an up to date register of the names of all owners/occupiers of individual caravans/lodges on site which shall be made available for inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request. For the avoidance of doubt the register shall contain the name and address of the principal owner/occupier together with dates of occupation.

REASON: In order to limit occupation of the lodges/caravans to that of holiday use only and to define the scope of the permission. It is further considered that the condition is required to prevent the use of the caravans/lodges for permanent occupation which may lead to unsustainable patterns of development which would be of harm to the Development Strategy for the Borough and to ensure the development accords with Key Statements DS1, DS2 and Policies DMG2 and DMH3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

9. The number of lodges/caravans on the site area subject to this consent shall not exceed 16 and under no circumstances should the site to which this consent relates accommodate touring caravans or any other caravans/lodges other than those indicated on the drawings hereby approved.

REASON: To clarify the nature of the consent hereby approved and to protect the visual amenities and character of the area in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

10. Details of the alignment, height and appearance of all boundary treatments, fencing, walling, retaining wall structures and gates to be erected within the development shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to their installation. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

11. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or any Order revoking and reenacting that Order, no external lighting/floodlighting or building/ground or wall mounted lighting shall be shall be erected or placed anywhere within the site to which this consent relates without written consent from the Local planning Authority.

REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over development which could prove materially harmful the character and visual amenities of the immediate area in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

12. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site unless and until a scheme for protective fencing for trees within and adjacent to the site, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Such fencing shall be in accordance with BS5837 (2012): 'Trees in Relation to Construction'. Such fencing shall be erected in its entirety prior to any other operations taking place on the site. This fencing should not be breached or removed during development. Furthermore within the areas so fenced the existing ground level shall be neither raised nor lowered and there shall be no development or development-related activity of any description including the deposit of spoil or the storage of materials unless expressly agreed by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To protect trees/hedging of landscape and visual amenity value on and adjacent to the site or those likely to be affected by the proposed development in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

13. No tree felling, vegetation clearance works, site clearance works, demolition work or other works that may affect nesting birds shall take place between 1st March and 31st August inclusive, unless the site has been subject to additional surveys by a competent ecologist, the results of which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the ecological survey/s.

REASON: To protect any nesting birds that may be present on the site and to minimise the potential impacts upon species of conservation concern in accordance with Policy DMG1 and Key Statement EN4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

14. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the provisions to be made for building dependent species of conservation concern, artificial bird nesting boxes and artificial bat roosting sites have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the details shall be submitted on a dwelling/building dependent bird/bat species site plan and include details of the mitigation measures to be provided and their precise location. The submitted details shall take account of the mitigation and compensation recommendations contained within the submitted Ecological Assessment (April 2015) and provide detailed timings for installation or implementation of

all mitigation/compensation measures. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details and the agreed mitigation measures shall be implemented in accordance with the approved timings and thereafter retained in perpetuity.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and to reduce the impact of development in accordance with Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

15. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the foul and surface water drainage for the site have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure appropriate drainage for the proposed development and to ensure that there is no flood risk on- or off-the site resulting from the proposed development in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

16. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of all refuse collection/storage points/areas and utility buildings (where applicable) have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over development which could prove materially harmful the character and visual amenities of the immediate area in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

(Rachel Whaley spoke in favour of the above application. Alan Kinder spoke against the above application).

4. APPLICATION NO: 3/2017/0771/P GRID REF: SD 374238 444441

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

PROPOSED WAR MEMORIAL AT LAND IN FRONT OF PILLINGS COTTAGE CORONATION GARDENS GRINDLETON ROAD WEST BRADFORD BB7 4TB

APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

 Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings '001 Location Plan', '010A Existing Plans and Elevations', '020A Proposed Plans and Elevations' and '030 Memorial'.

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

5. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0797 GRID REF: SD 365099 430903

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

TWO STOREY EXTENSION TO SIDE CREATING GARAGE AND UTILITY ROOM AT GROUND FLOOR LEVEL AND ADDITIONAL BEDROOM AT FIRST FLOOR LEVEL (WITHIN NEW ROOF). NEW SINGLE STOREY PORCH TO FRONT. RENDER TO FRONT ELEVATION AT MELROSE, CHURCH LANE, MELLOR, BB2 7JL

APPROVED subject to the imposition of the following condition(s):

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings:

Proposed Plans & Elevations – Drawing No: 1737-G&T-Z0-00-DR-A-0002 Proposed Block Plan – Drawing No: P2017-G&T-Z0-00-DR-A-1005

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

3. Notwithstanding the submitted details, precise specifications or samples of all external surfaces, including surfacing materials and their extents, of the development hereby permitted shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before their use in the proposed development. The approved materials shall be implemented within the development in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMH5 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

4. No part of the extension hereby approved shall be occupied until the additional parking provision as per submitted plan 'Existing & Proposed Site Plan – Project No: 1737 – Drawing No: 07' has been constructed and completed in accordance with the scheme details agreed by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order the parking standards for the size of dwelling are met.

(Mrs Bolton spoke in favour of the above application. Mrs Jones spoke against the above application).

(Councillor Geldard declared an interest in the next item of business and left the meeting)

6. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0573 GRID REF: SD 373281 441769

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

APPLICATION FOR 36 DWELLINGS (INCLUDING 11 AFFORDABLE UNITS), CAR PARKING, LANDSCAPING AND NEW ACCESS FROM UNION STREET, CLITHEROE.

The Head of Planning Services reported clarification from the LLFA that they had no objections and from the Highway Authority who had confirmed that they had no objections. He also reported 6 additional letters of concern and informed Committee that there would be an additional condition and alteration to two other conditions.

DEFERRED and DELEGATED to the Director of Community Services for approval subject to the satisfactory completion of a Legal Agreement, within 3 months from the date of this Committee meeting or delegated to the Director of Community Services in conjunction with the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson of Planning and Development Committee should exceptional circumstances exist beyond the period of 3 months and subject to the following conditions:

Details

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2. Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings:

Plans:

```
16041 01 Rev H (amended plan received 14/09/17) 16041 03 16041 05 Rev A (amended plan received 13/09/17) 5327.02 Rev C (amended plan received 13/09/17) 5327.03 Rev C (amended plan received 13/09/17) SCP/16391/F02 (plan received 22/08/17)
```

House Types:

```
01 - Bellflower
```

02 A - Brookline Special (amended plan received 14/09/17)

03 - Charlock

04 - Foxtail

05 – Holly Hock

06 - Rosebay

07 - Woodrush

08 - Single Garage

09 - Sales Garage

16041-H-01 A – Holly Hock Plot 34 (amended plan received 14/09/17)

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

Materials

3. Notwithstanding the submitted details and the requirements of condition 2 of this approval, precise specifications or samples of all external surfaces including, door/window surrounds and framing materials, fascia/barge boards and roofing/ridge materials including their colour and texture shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before their use in the proposed development.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

4. Prior to the commencement of the development details of the design and position of the external meter boxes shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. For the avoidance of doubt the details shall indicate that no meter boxes will be located on the primary elevations of the proposed dwellings or on locations that that are afforded a high level of visibility upon the streetscene. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality and results in

acceptable standard of appearance in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Ground levels

5. Prior to the commencement of development full details of existing and proposed ground levels and proposed building finished floor levels (all relative to ground levels adjoining the site) shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interest of visual and residential amenities and in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Highways

6. Prior to any building work commencing on site a scheme for the provision of facilities to charge electric vehicles within at least 30% of the dwellings hereby approved shall have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details and the charging facilities shall be made available for use prior to the occupation of each dwellings house within which they will be installed.

REASON: To ensure that provision is made for electric powered cars and to support sustainable methods of travel in accordance with Key Statement DMI2 and Policy DMG3 of the Core Strategy.

7. For the full period of construction, facilities shall be available on site for the cleaning of the wheels of vehicles leaving the site and such equipment shall be used as necessary to prevent mud and stones being carried onto the highway. The roads adjacent to the site shall be mechanically swept as required during the full construction period.

REASON: To prevent stones and mud being carried onto the public highway to the detriment of road safety.

- 8. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. It shall provide include:
 - The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
 - Loading and unloading of plant and materials used in the construction of the development;
 - Storage of such plant and materials;
 - Wheel washing facilities;

- Periods when plant and materials trips should not be made to and from the site (mainly peak hours but the developer to identify times when trips of this nature should not be made)
- Routes to be used by vehicles carrying plant and materials to and from the site;
- Measures to ensure that construction and delivery vehicles do not impede access to adjoining properties.

REASON: In the interests of protecting residential amenity from noise and disturbance and to ensure the safe operation of the Highway during the construction phase of the development in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

9. The new estate road for the development shall be constructed in accordance with the Lancashire County Council Specification for Construction of Estate Roads to at least base course level up to the entrance of the site compound before any development takes place within the site and shall be further extended before any development commences fronting the new access road.

REASON: To ensure that satisfactory access is provided to the site before the development hereby permitted becomes operative.

10. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Development Procedure) Order 2015 and the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment) (No 2) (England) Order 2015, or any subsequent Orders or statutory provision re-enacting the provisions of these Orders, all garages shown on the approved plan shall be maintained as such and shall not be converted to or used for living accommodation without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority.

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and to facilitate adequate vehicle parking and/or turning facilities to serve the dwelling in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

11. No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until a scheme for the construction of the site access and the off-site works of highway improvement has been submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority as part of a Section 278 Agreement, under the Highways Act 1980. Such highway improvement works will include the provision of give way signs, as shown on drawing SCP/16391/F02 (plan received 22/08/17), and highway improvements for the site access. No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until the approved scheme/highway works have been constructed and completed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In order to satisfy the Local Planning Authority and Highway Authority that the final details of the highway scheme/works are acceptable before work commences on site and to enable all construction traffic to enter and leave the premises in a safe manner without causing a hazard to other

road users in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

12. Prior to commencement of the development, a joint survey shall be carried out between the developer and the planning authority (in conjunction with the highway authority) to determine the condition of Greenfield Avenue/Union Street. A similar survey shall be carried out every six months and the final inspection within one month of the completion of the last house, and the developer shall make good any damage to Greenfield Avenue/Union Street to return it to the pre-construction situation as required.

REASON: To maintain the construction of Greenfield Avenue/Union Street in the interest of highway safety.

13. The car parking and manoeuvring areas for vehicles shall be marked out and made available for use in accordance with the approved plan 16041 01 Rev H (amended plan received 14/09/17) before the dwelling to which those spaces relate becomes first occupied and the five car parking spaces shown at the southern end of the site (adjacent to Greenfield Avenue) shall be marked out and made available for use before any dwelling is first occupied. All car parking spaces shall be permanently maintained as such thereafter.

REASON: To allow for the effective use of the parking areas in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

14. Prior to commencement of development on site, a scheme detailing the location, size and design of the cycling storage facilities for all dwellings with integral/detached garages shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The cycle storage facilities shall be provided in accordance with the approved details before each unit hereby permitted becomes operative and shall be retained as such thereafter.

REASON: To ensure that provision is made for cycles and to support sustainable methods of travel in accordance with Key Statement DMI2 and Policy DMG3 of the Core Strategy.

Ecology and Trees

15. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in complete accordance with the "Recommendations and Ecological Enhancement" measures detailed/recommended within Section 5 of the submitted Ecological Survey and Assessment (ERAP Ltd Ref: 2016-276)

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and reduce the impact of development in accordance with Policies DMG1 and EN4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

16. Notwithstanding the submitted details and requirements of condition 15, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow

clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the provisions to be made for building dependent species of conservation concern, artificial bird nesting boxes and artificial bat roosting sites have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the details shall be submitted on a dwelling/building dependent bird/bat species site plan and include details of plot numbers and the numbers of artificial bird nesting boxes and artificial bat roosting site per individual dwelling and type. The details shall also identify the actual wall and roof elevations into which the above provisions shall be incorporated.

The artificial bird/bat boxes shall be incorporated into those individual dwellings during construction and be made available for use before each such dwelling is occupied and thereafter retained. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and protected species in accordance with Section 9 of the NPPF, and Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

17. Prior to commencement of any site works including delivery of building materials and excavations for foundations or services, all the existing/retained trees and hedging shown on drawing 5327.02 Rev C (amended plan received 13/09/17) shall have been enclosed with temporary protective fencing in accordance with BS5837:2012 [Trees in Relation to Demolition, Design & Construction] which is to be inspected on site by the Local Planning Authority. The fencing shall be retained during the period of construction and no work, excavation, tipping, or stacking/storage of materials shall take place within such protective fencing during the construction period.

REASON: To ensure that existing trees are adequately protected during construction in the interests of the visual amenity of the area in accordance with Policy DME1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

18. No clearance of any vegetation in preparation for or during the course of development shall take place during the bird breeding season (March - August inclusive) unless an ecological survey has first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority which demonstrates that the vegetation to be cleared is not utilised for bird nesting. Should the survey reveal the presence of any nesting species, then no clearance of any vegetation shall take place during the bird breeding season until a methodology for protecting nest sites during the course of the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Nest site protection shall thereafter be provided in accordance with the duly approved methodology.

REASON: To ensure that there are no adverse effects on the favourable conservation status of birds and to protect the bird population from damaging

activities and reduce or remove the impact of development in accordance with Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

19. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no building works shall commence on site until details of a scheme for any external building or ground mounted lighting/illumination, shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the submitted details shall include luminance levels and demonstrate how any proposed external lighting has been designed and located to avoid excessive light spill/pollution and shall include details to demonstrate how artificial illumination of important wildlife habitats is minimised/mitigated.

The lighting schemes(s) shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and retained as approved unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over development which could prove materially harmful the character and visual amenities of the immediate area and to minimise/mitigate the potential impacts upon protected species resultant from the development in accordance with Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

20. Prior to occupation of the first dwelling, a landscape management plan including long term design objectives, timing of the works, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscaped areas (other than within curtilages of buildings), shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure the proper long-term management and maintenance of the landscaped areas in the interests of visual amenity and biodiversity enhancement, in accordance with Key Policy DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

21. No development, including any site preparation, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until a scheme of phasing for the approved landscaping scheme (as shown on approved drawing 5327.03 Rev C - amended plan received 13/09/17) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the duly approved timings and phasing's. The areas which are landscaped shall be retained as landscaped areas thereafter. Any trees or shrubs removed, dying, being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within three years of planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of similar size and species to those originally required to be planted.

REASON: To ensure the proposed landscaped areas are provided on a phase by phase basis in accordance with Policy DME1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Archaeology

- 22. No development shall take place until the applicant, or their agent or successors in title, has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work. This must be carried out in accordance with a written scheme of investigation, which shall first have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme of works should be phased and consist of
 - (a) An initial phase of archaeological investigation of the development site and the production of a report; and
 - (b) A second phase of recording or other mitigation works shown to be necessary by the initial investigation.

These works should be undertaken by an appropriately qualified and experienced archaeological contractor to the standards and guidance issued by the Chartered Institute for Archaeologists (CIfA, www.archaeologists.net).

REASON: To ensure and safeguard the recording and inspection of matters of archaeological/historical importance associated with the site.

Residential Amenity

23. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no building or engineering operations within the site or deliveries to and from the site shall take place other than between 07:30 hours and 18:00 hours Monday to Friday and between 08:30 hours and 14:00 hours on Saturdays, and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

REASON: In order to protect the amenities of existing residents in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Contamination

24. The development hereby approved shall adhere to the recommendations and conclusions of the Phase II Geo-Environmental Site Assessment (March 2017 Ref: 11-525-r1).

REASON: In the interests of providing an appropriate environment for the end users of the development and to comply with Policy G1 of the Ribble Valley Districtwide Local Plan.

Drainage

25. No development shall commence until final details of the design, based on sustainable drainage principles, and implementation of an appropriate

surface water sustainable drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Those details shall include, as a minimum:

- a) Information about the lifetime of the development, design storm period and intensity (1 in 30 & 1 in 100 year + allowance for climate change see EA advice Flood risk assessments: climate change allowances'), discharge rates and volumes (both pre and post development), temporary storage facilities, the methods employed to delay and control surface water discharged from the site, and the measures taken to prevent flooding and pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters, including watercourses, and details of floor levels in AOD;
- b) The drainage strategy should demonstrate that the post development surface water run-off rate will not exceed the pre-development greenfield run-off rate for the corresponding rainfall event. The maximum surface water run-off rate from the development will be no greater than 10.6l/s. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.
- Any works required off-site to ensure adequate discharge of surface water without causing flooding or pollution (which should include refurbishment of existing watercourses (open or culverted) and headwalls or removal of unused culverts where relevant);
- d) Flood water exceedance routes, both on and off site;
- e) A timetable for implementation, including phasing as applicable;
- f) Evidence of an assessment of the site conditions to include a site investigation and test results to confirm infiltrations rates. If infiltration is shown to be a viable option for the disposal of surface water, then this should then be used as the primary method for disposing of surface water from the site. Disposal via an ordinary watercourse will only be considered where infiltration is proved to be unsuitable.
- g) Details of water quality controls, where applicable.

The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and no works above slab level shall be carried out before the works are implemented. Thereafter the drainage details shall be retained, managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that the proposed development can be adequately drained and to ensure there is no flood risk on or off the site resulting from the proposed development in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

26. No development shall commence until details of an appropriate management and maintenance plan for the sustainable drainage system for the lifetime of the development have been submitted which, as a minimum, shall include:

- The arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management and maintenance by a Residents' Management Company
- b) Arrangements concerning appropriate funding mechanisms for its ongoing maintenance of all elements of the sustainable drainage system (including mechanical components) and will include elements such as:
 - i. on-going inspections relating to performance and asset condition assessments
 - operation costs for regular maintenance, remedial works and irregular maintenance caused by less sustainable limited life assets or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime;
- c) Means of access for maintenance and easements where applicable.

The plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and no works above slab level shall be carried out before the works are implemented. Thereafter the sustainable drainage system shall be managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that appropriate and sufficient funding and maintenance mechanisms are put in place for the lifetime of the development. To reduce the flood risk to the development as a result of inadequate maintenance and to identify the responsible organisation/body/company/undertaker for the sustainable drainage system in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

27. No development shall take place until further investigations have been carried out to confirm that the works detailed on drawing no. '30250/AppH Rev B' have been completed in full. This includes works to replace the existing 525mm diameter culverted watercourse within the site (to the junction between Union Street and Queen Street) and works to clear and re-grade the open ditch along the northern and eastern boundaries of the site. The final surface water drainage scheme should reflect the findings of this investigation as appropriate.

REASON: To ensure that the existing watercourse does not pose a flood risk, on-site or off-site and to ensure that the proposed development can be adequately drained in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

28. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems.

REASON: In order to reduce the risk of flooding in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

29. Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage scheme, based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The surface water drainage scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement national standards and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no surface water shall discharge to the public sewerage system either directly or indirectly. The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

30. No development approved by the submission shall be commenced until full details of the improvements to the south west culvert, existing ditches and land drain as detailed on planning 30250/APP/HREvB (amended plan received 11 October 2017) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the agreed culvert, ditches and land drain works shall be undertaken and completed prior to any development taking place in conjunction with the development hereby approved.

REASON: In order to reduce the risk of flooding in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

INFORMATIVES:

- 1. The alterations to the existing highway as part of the new works may require changes to the existing street lighting at the expense of the client/developer.
- 2. The grant of planning permission will require the applicant to enter into an appropriate Legal Agreement, with the County Council as Highway Authority. The Highway Authority hereby reserves the right to provide the highway works within the highway associated with this proposal. Provision of the highway works includes design, procurement of the work by contract and supervision of the works. The applicant should be advised to contact the contact the Environment Directorate for further information by telephoning the Developer Support Section on 0300 123 6780, or emailing the Developer Support Section, Lancashire County Council, Environment Directorate, at lhscustomerservice@lancashire.gov.uk
- 3. The grant of planning permission does not entitle a developer to obstruct a right of way and any proposed stopping-up or diversion of a right of way should be the subject of an Order under the appropriate Act.

- 4. This consent does not give approval to a connection being made to the County Council's highway drainage system.
- 5. For the avoidance of doubt, this response does not grant the applicant permission to connect to the ordinary watercourse(s) and, once planning permission has been obtained, it does not mean that land drainage consent will be given.

The applicant should obtain Land Drainage Consent from Lancashire County Council before starting any works on site. Information on the application process and relevant forms can be found via the following website: www.lancashire.gov.uk/flooding.

(Mr Robinson spoke in favour of the above application. Mrs Dixon spoke against the above application).

(Councillor Geldard returned to the meeting)

7. APPLICATION REF: 3/2017/0616/P GRID REF: SD 377444 443028

DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION:

DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION OF 60 DWELLINGS AND ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE AT CLITHEROE HOSPITAL, CLITHEROE

The Head of Planning Services reported an additional letter of objection and a letter from the NHS in support of the application. Historic England had confirmed again that the building was not worthy of listing.

DEFERRED and DELEGATED to the Director of Community Services for approval subject to the satisfactory completion of a Legal Agreement, within 3 months from the date of this Committee meeting or delegated to the Director of Community Services in conjunction with the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson of Planning and Development Committee should exceptional circumstances exist beyond the period of 3 months and subject to the following conditions:

Details

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

Plans

2. Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on drawings:

```
Red Line Boundary – A094939_001 Rev B
Site Layout – PL-01 rev B (amended plan received 10/10/17)
Materials Layout – ML-01 A (amended plans received 10/10/17)
Landscape Layout 5493.01 Rev. B (amended plans received 05/10/17)
Drainage Strategy - C2-P-96 rev. P01 (amended plans received 10/10/17)
Drainage Strategy - C2-P-97 rev. P01 (amended plans received 10/10/17)
```

House Types:

```
Ashdown – ASH 1.71
Buttermere – BUT(LTH) 1.9 (amended plans received 05/09/17)
Buttermere (LTH) – BUT(LTH) 1.2 (amended plans received 05/09/17)
Chatham (Plot 34 + 58) – CHA 2.0 (amended plans received 11/10/17)
Chatham - CHA 1.7
Churchill – Chur 1.7 (amended plans received 11/10/17)
Cleveland (Plot 59 + 60) – CLE 2.0 (amended plans received 11/10/17)
Cleveland - CLE 1.7
Garth – GAR 1.7 (amended plans received 05/09/17)
Garth Plot (Plot 31 + 35) - GAR 2.0 (amended plans received 11/10/17)
Maidstone (Plot 32 + 33) – MAI 2.0 (amended plans received 11/10/17)
Maidstone – MAI 1.7 (amended plans received 05/09/17)
Oakhurst (Plot 30) - OAK 2.0 (amended plans received 11/10/17)
Oakhurst – OAK 1.7 (amended plans received 05/09/17)
Dormer Bungalow – Bung 1.7 (amended plans received 11/10/17)
Welland – WEL 1.7 (amended plans received 05/09/17)
Windermere – Win 1.7 (amended plans received 05/09/17)
Winster - Win 1.7
```

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant to the consent.

Materials

3. Notwithstanding the submitted details and the requirements of condition 2 of this approval, precise specifications or samples of all external surfaces including, door/window surrounds and framing materials, fascia/barge boards and roofing/ridge materials including their colour and texture shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before their use in the proposed development.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the materials to be used are appropriate to the locality in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

4. Prior to the commencement of the development details of the design and position of the external meter boxes shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. For the avoidance of doubt the details shall indicate that no meter boxes will be located on the primary elevations of the proposed dwellings or on locations that that are afforded a high level of visibility upon the streetscene. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality and results in acceptable standard of appearance in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Highways

5. Prior to any building work commencing on site a scheme for the provision of facilities to charge electric vehicles within at least 30% of the dwellings hereby approved shall have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details and the charging facilities shall be made available for use prior to the occupation of each dwellings house within which they will be installed.

REASON: To ensure that provision is made for electric powered cars and to support sustainable methods of travel in accordance with Key Statement DMI2 and Policy DMG3 of the Core Strategy.

6. For the full period of construction, facilities shall be available on site for the cleaning of the wheels of vehicles leaving the site and such equipment shall be used as necessary to prevent mud and stones being carried onto the highway. The roads adjacent to the site shall be mechanically swept as required during the full construction period.

REASON: To prevent stones and mud being carried onto the public highway to the detriment of road safety.

7. Notwithstanding the submitted details or the requirements of condition 2, no development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. It shall provide include:

The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;

Loading and unloading of plant and materials used in the construction of the development;

Storage of such plant and materials:

Periods when plant and materials trips should not be made to and from the site (mainly peak hours but the developer to identify times when trips of this nature should not be made);

Routes to be used by vehicles carrying plant and materials to and from the site:

Measures to ensure that construction and delivery vehicles do not impede access to adjoining properties.

REASON: In the interests of protecting residential amenity from noise and disturbance and to ensure the safe operation of the Highway during the construction phase of the development in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

8. The new estate road for the development shall be constructed in accordance with the Lancashire County Council Specification for Construction of Estate Roads to at least base course level up to the entrance of the site compound before any development takes place within the site and shall be further extended before any development commences fronting the new access road.

REASON: To ensure that satisfactory access is provided to the site before the development hereby permitted becomes operative.

9. The parking, garaging and associated manoeuvring facilities shown on the plans hereby approved shall be surfaced or paved, drained and marked out and made available in accordance with the approved Site Layout Dwg. No. PL1 rev B (amended plan received 10/10/17) prior to the occupation of any of the dwellings. Such parking facilities shall thereafter be permanently retained for that purpose (notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015).

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and to facilitate adequate vehicle parking and turning facilities to serve the site in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

10. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Development Procedure) Order 2015 and the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment) (No 2) (England) Order 2015, or any subsequent Orders or statutory provision re-enacting the provisions of these Orders, all garages shown on the approved plan shall be maintained as such and shall not be converted to or used for living accommodation without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority.

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and to facilitate adequate vehicle parking and/or turning facilities to serve the dwelling in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

11. No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until a scheme for the construction of the site access and the off-site works of highway improvement has been submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority as part of a section 278 agreement, under the Highways Act 1980. The off-site highway works shall include the widening of the footway to the front of the site to a minimum width of 2.0m, alterations to the existing street lighting on Chatburn Road where required, the introduction of an extended 30mph speed limit and waiting restrictions on Chatburn Road, and reinstatement of the redundant access points.

REASON: In order to satisfy the Local Planning Authority and Highway Authority that the final details of the highway scheme/works are acceptable before work commences on site and to enable all construction traffic to enter and leave the premises in a safe manner without causing a hazard to other road users in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

12. The layout of the development shall include provisions to enable vehicles to enter and leave the highway in forward gear and such provisions shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plan and the vehicular turning space shall be laid out and be available for use before any development commences and maintained thereafter.

REASON: Vehicles reversing to and from the highway are a hazard to other road users, for residents and construction vehicles in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

13. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Development Procedure) Order 2015 and the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment) (No 2) (England) Order 2015, there shall not at any time in connection with the development hereby permitted be erected or planted or allowed to remain upon the land hereinafter defined any building, wall, fence, hedge, tree, shrub or other device over 1m above road level. The visibility splay to be the subject of this condition shall be that land in front of a line drawn from a point 2.4m measured along the centre line of the proposed road from the continuation of the nearer edge of the carriageway of Chatburn Road to points measured 68m in an easterly direction and 104m in a westerly direction along the nearer edge of the carriageway of Chatburn Road, from the centre line of the access.

REASON: To ensure adequate visibility at the street junction or site access in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy

14. The two existing vehicle access points (onto Chatburn Road) shall be physically and permanently closed and the existing footway and kerbing of the vehicular crossing shall be reinstated in accordance with the Lancashire

County Council Specification for Construction of Estate Roads, concurrent with the formation of the new access.

REASON: To limit the number of access points and to maintain the proper construction of the highway in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

15. Prior to the start of the development, a joint survey shall be carried out between the developer and the planning authority (in conjunction with the highway authority) to determine the condition of Chatburn Road A similar survey shall be carried out every six months and the final inspection within one months of the completion of the last house, and the developer shall make good any damage to Chatburn Road to return it to the pre-construction situation as required.

REASON: To maintain the construction of Chatburn Road in the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

16. Prior to the commencement of any development an order shall be placed for staff costs, the advertising and implementation of traffic regulation orders for waiting restrictions along Chatburn Road and the extension of the 30mph speed limit up to and including the Pimlico Link Road roundabout speed limits, to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority.

REASON: In the interest of highway safety and compliance with current highway legislation in accordance with Policies DMG1 and DMG3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Ecology and Trees

17. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in complete accordance with the recommendations and mitigation measures detailed within the submitted Protected Species Survey (Dec 2016) and Phase 1 Habitat Survey (Dec 16).

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and reduce the impact of development in accordance with Policies DMG1 and EN4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

18. Notwithstanding the submitted details and requirements of condition 19, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until details of the provisions to be made for building dependent species of conservation concern, artificial bird nesting boxes and artificial bat roosting sites have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the details shall be submitted on a dwelling/building dependent bird/bat species site plan and include details of plot numbers and the numbers of artificial bird nesting boxes and artificial bat roosting site per individual dwelling and type. The details shall also identify the actual wall and roof elevations into which the above provisions shall be incorporated.

The artificial bird/bat boxes shall be incorporated into those individual dwellings during construction and be made available for use before each such dwelling is occupied and thereafter retained. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and protected species in accordance with Section 9 of the NPPF, and Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

19. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site place until a detailed method statement for the removal or long-term management/eradication of Himalayan Balsam and Japanese Knotweed on the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The method statement shall include proposed measures to prevent the spread of Himalayan Balsam and Japanese Knotweed during any operations such as mowing, strimming or soil movement. It shall also contain measures to ensure that any soils brought to the site are free of the seeds/ root / stem of any invasive plant covered under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. Development shall thereafter proceed in strict accordance with the duly approved method statement.

REASON: Himalayan Balsam and Japanese Knotweed are invasive plants, the spread of which is prohibited under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. Without measures to prevent its spread as a result of the development there would be the risk of an offence being committed and avoidable harm to the environment.

20. Within the six month period prior to any demolition or tree clearance works, a bat survey and ecology update shall have first been undertaken by a suitably qualified ecologist and submitted for the writing approval of the Local Planning Authority, in order to establish the habitat potential of the site (including all trees and buildings). The development shall then be undertaken in complete accordance with the recommendations and mitigations contained within this approved report.

REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting opportunities for species of conservation concern and reduce the impact of development in accordance with Policies DMG1 and EN4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

21. No clearance of any vegetation in preparation for or during the course of development shall take place during the bird breeding season (March - August inclusive) unless an ecological survey has first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority which demonstrates that the vegetation to be cleared is not utilised for bird nesting. Should the survey reveal the presence of any nesting species, then no clearance of any vegetation shall take place during the bird breeding season until a methodology for protecting nest sites during the course of the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Nest site protection shall thereafter be provided in accordance with the duly approved methodology.

REASON: To ensure that there are no adverse effects on the favourable conservation status of birds and to protect the bird population from damaging activities and reduce or remove the impact of development in accordance with Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

22. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no building works shall commence on site until details of a scheme for any external building or ground mounted lighting/illumination, shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

For the avoidance of doubt the submitted details shall include luminance levels and demonstrate how any proposed external lighting has been designed and located to avoid excessive light spill/pollution and shall include details to demonstrate how artificial illumination of important wildlife habitats is minimised/mitigated.

The lighting schemes(s) be implemented in accordance with the approved details and retained as approved unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over development which could prove materially harmful the character and visual amenities of the immediate area and to minimise/mitigate the potential impacts upon protected species resultant from the development in accordance with Key Statement EN4 and Policies DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

23. Prior to occupation of the first dwelling, a landscape management plan including long term design objectives, timing of the works, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscaped areas (other than within curtilages of buildings), shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure the proper long-term management and maintenance of the landscaped areas in the interests of visual amenity and biodiversity enhancement, in accordance with Key Policy DMG1 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy. 24. Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to the commencement of the development, details at a scale of not less than 1:20 of the proposed boundary walling, gates and fencing shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority and these details shall identify the measures to be taken to encourage habitat connectivity. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality and to enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policies DMG1, DME3 and DMH3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

25. No development, including any site preparation, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until a scheme of phasing for the approved landscaping scheme (as shown on approved drawing 5493.01 Rev B - amended plan received 05/10/17) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the duly approved timings and phasing's. The areas which are landscaped shall be retained as landscaped areas thereafter. Any trees or shrubs removed, dying, being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within three years of planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of similar size and species to those originally required to be planted.

REASON: To ensure the proposed landscaped areas are provided on a phase by phase basis in accordance with Policy DME1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

26. Prior to commencement of any site works including delivery of building materials and excavations for foundations or services, all the existing/retained trees and hedging shown on drawing 5493.01 Rev B (amended plan received 05/10/17) shall have been enclosed with temporary protective fencing in accordance with BS5837:2012 [Trees in Relation to Demolition, Design & Construction] which is to be inspected on site by the Local Planning Authority. The fencing shall be retained during the period of construction and no work, excavation, tipping, or stacking/storage of materials shall take place within such protective fencing during the construction period.

REASON: To ensure that existing trees are adequately protected during construction in the interests of the visual amenity of the area in accordance with Policy DME1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

27. Notwithstanding the submitted details, precise specifications including a method statement of the creation of the pond shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before the implementation of any works within the Root Protection Areas of the protected trees, primarily G4 and G5 (as referenced within Clitheroe Old Hospital, A671, Chatburn Rd Tree Preservation Order 2017).

Any excavation within the Root Protection Area (RPA) of the protected trees shall be carried out by hand tools unless an arboriculturalist is present to monitor vehicle use. Any vehicle used in this way must work from existing hard standing and not enter the soft ground at any time.

If any roots are uncovered which are larger than 25mm or in clumps larger than 25mm all works should stop as the roots may be essential to the trees health and safety and appropriate action must be taken , in accordance with BS5837 (2012): Trees in Relation to Construction.

REASON: To protect trees of landscape and visual amenity value on and adjacent to the site or those likely to be affected by the proposed development in accordance with Key Statement EN2 and Policies DME1 and DME2 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

28. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, including any site preparation, demolition, scrub/hedgerow clearance or tree works/removal shall commence or be undertaken on site until a Woodland Management Plan, including long-term design objectives, management responsibilities, maintenance schedules and phasing/timetable of works to undertaken for G1 (as referenced within Clitheroe Old Hospital, A671, Chatburn Rd Tree Preservation Order 2017) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Woodland Management Plan shall be carried out in complete accordance with the approved details, including the approved phasing/timetable of works.

REASON: To ensure the proper long-term management of retained woodland areas in the interests of visual amenity and biodiversity in accordance with Key Statements EN2 and EN4 and Policies DME1, DME2 and DME3 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Contamination

29. The development hereby approved shall adhere to the recommendations, mitigation measures and conclusions detailed within the "Ground Investigation Report" (Ref: A094939 – February 2017).

REASON: In the interests of providing an appropriate environment for the end users of the development and to comply with Policy G1 of the Ribble Valley Districtwide Local Plan.

Residential Amenity

30. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no building or engineering operations within the site or deliveries to and from the site shall take place other than between 07:30 hours and 18:00 hours Monday to Friday and between 08:30 hours and 14:00 hours on Saturdays, and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

REASON: In order to protect the amenities of existing residents in accordance with Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

31. Notwithstanding the requirements of condition 2 of this approval, the following windows shall be obscurely glazed to a minimum of level 3 on the Pilkington Scale (where 1 is the lowest and 5 the greatest level of obscurity) and shall be non-opening unless the parts of the window which can be opened are more than 1.7 metres above the floor level of the room in which the window is installed:

First floor landing window in the rear elevation of the Ashdown House Type;

First floor bathroom window in side elevation of the Churchill House Type;

First floor ensuite, bathroom and landing windows in both side elevations of the Cleveland House Type;

First floor landing and ensuite windows in both side elevation of the Maidstone House Type:

First floor bathroom and landing windows in both side elevation of the Oakhurst House Type;

First floor bathroom and landing windows in both side elevation of the Welland House Type;

First floor bathroom window in the side elevation of the Windermere House Type:

First floor bathroom window in the side elevation of the Winster House Type;

The duly installed window shall be retained as such thereafter.

REASON: To safeguard the privacy of occupiers of neighbouring dwellings and to ensure satisfactory levels of amenity for residents in accordance with the requirements of Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Noise

32. The development hereby approved shall adhere to the recommendations, mitigation measures and conclusions detailed within the submitted "Noise Assessment" (Ref: A103492 – June 2017).

REASON: To ensure satisfactory levels of amenity for residents in accordance with the requirements of Policy DMG1 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Archaeology and Heritage

33. No development shall take place until the applicant, or their agent or successors in title, has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological building recording and analysis. This must be carried out in accordance with a written scheme of investigation, which shall first have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The programme of recording should comprise a Level 3 record, as set out in 'Understanding Historic Buildings' (Historic England 2016). It should be undertaken by an appropriately experienced and qualified professional

archaeological contractor to the standards and guidance set out by the Chartered Institute for Archaeologists.

REASON: To ensure and safeguard the recording and inspection of matters of archaeological/historical importance associated with the site in accordance with Policy DME4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

34. No development shall take place until the applicant, or their agent or successors in title, has undertaken a photographic record of the interior, exterior and immediate surroundings of the former workhouse and infirmary buildings and submitted details of a method of "interpretation" (in relation to the former Clitheroe Union Workhouse) to be installed at the site. The submitted details shall include the content of this "interpretation", its design and siting, and a timetable for its installation on site, and the development shall be carried out in complete accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure and safeguard the recording and inspection of matters of archaeological/historical importance associated with the site in accordance with Policy DME4 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

Drainage

35. No development shall commence until final details of the design, based on sustainable drainage principles, and implementation of an appropriate surface water sustainable drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Those details shall include, as a minimum:

- a) Information about the lifetime of the development, design storm period and intensity (1 in 30 & 1 in 100 year + allowance for climate change see EA advice Flood risk assessments: climate change allowances'), discharge rates and volumes (both pre and post development), temporary storage facilities, the methods employed to delay and control surface water discharged from the site, and the measures taken to prevent flooding and pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters, including watercourses, and details of floor levels in AOD;
- b) The drainage strategy should demonstrate that the post development surface water run-off rate will not exceed the pre-development greenfield run-off rate for the corresponding rainfall event. The maximum surface water run-off rate from the development will be no greater than 10.6l/s. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.
- c) Any works required off-site to ensure adequate discharge of surface water without causing flooding or pollution (which should include refurbishment of existing watercourses (open or culverted) and headwalls or removal of unused culverts where relevant);
- d) Flood water exceedance routes, both on and off site;
- e) A timetable for implementation, including phasing as applicable;

- f) Evidence of an assessment of the site conditions to include a site investigation and test results to confirm infiltrations rates. If infiltration is shown to be a viable option for the disposal of surface water, then this should then be used as the primary method for disposing of surface water from the site. Disposal via an ordinary watercourse will only be considered where infiltration is proved to be unsuitable.
- g) Details of water quality controls, where applicable.

The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of any of the approved dwellings, or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the drainage system shall be retained, managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that the proposed development can be adequately drained and to ensure there is no flood risk on or off the site resulting from the proposed development in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

- 36. No development shall commence until details of an appropriate management and maintenance plan for the sustainable drainage system for the lifetime of the development have been submitted which, as a minimum, shall include:
 - The arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management and maintenance by a Residents' Management Company
 - b) Arrangements concerning appropriate funding mechanisms for its ongoing maintenance of all elements of the sustainable drainage system (including mechanical components) and will include elements such as:
 - i. on-going inspections relating to performance and asset condition assessments
 - operation costs for regular maintenance, remedial works and irregular maintenance caused by less sustainable limited life assets or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime;
 - c) Means of access for maintenance and easements where applicable.

The plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of any of the approved dwellings, or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the sustainable drainage system shall be managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To ensure that appropriate and sufficient funding and maintenance mechanisms are put in place for the lifetime of the development. To reduce the flood risk to the development as a result of inadequate maintenance and to identify the responsible organisation/body/company/undertaker for the

sustainable drainage system in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy.

37. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems.

REASON: In order to reduce the risk of flooding in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

38. Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage scheme, based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The surface water drainage scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement national standards and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no surface water shall discharge to the public sewerage system either directly or indirectly.

The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution in accordance with Policy DME6 of the Ribble Valley Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

INFORMATIVES:

- 1. The alterations to the existing highway as part of the new works may require changes to the existing street lighting at the expense of the client/developer.
- 2. The grant of planning permission will require the applicant to enter into an appropriate Legal Agreement, with the County Council as Highway Authority. The Highway Authority hereby reserves the right to provide the highway works within the highway associated with this proposal. Provision of the highway works includes design, procurement of the work by contract and supervision of the works. The applicant should be advised to contact the contact the Environment Directorate for further information by telephoning the Developer Support Section on 0300 123 6780, or emailing the Developer Support Section, Lancashire County Council, Environment Directorate, at Ihscustomerservice@lancashire.gov.uk
- 3. The grant of planning permission does not entitle a developer to obstruct a right of way and any proposed stopping-up or diversion of a right of way should be the subject of an Order under the appropriate Act.

- 4. No work to any trees covered by a TPO (other than the removal of two trees within the application) shall be untaken without the relevant works to trees application being submitted to the LPA.
- 5. For the avoidance of doubt, this response does not grant the applicant permission to connect to the ordinary watercourse(s) and, once planning permission has been obtained, it does not mean that land drainage consent will be given.
- 6. The applicant should obtain Land Drainage Consent from Lancashire County Council before starting any works on site. Information on the application process and relevant forms can be found via the following website: www.lancashire.gov.uk/flooding.

(Louise Leyland spoke in favour of the above application. Mr Burke spoke against the above application).

372 SECTION 106 APPLICATIONS

<u>Plan No</u>	<u>Location</u>	<u>Date to</u> <u>Committee</u>	<u>Number</u> <u>of</u> Dwellings	<u>Progress</u>
3/2017/0133	Land off Dale View Billington	31/8/17	41	With Applicants Solicitor

<u>Plan No</u>	<u>Location</u>	<u>Date to</u> <u>Committee</u>	Going to Committee to Decision	Number of Dwellings	<u>Progress</u>
3/2016/0974	Land West Preston Road Longridge	16/2/17	31 weeks	275	Decision 18/9/17

373 APPLICATIONS WITHDRAWN

<u>Plan No</u> 3/2017/0670	Proposal Conversion of former Punch Bowl Inn (Grade II listed building) into 5 holiday lets and café including demolition and extensions. New pitch holiday lodge park with 15no units within curtilage	Location Former Punch Bowl Inn Longridge Road Hurst Green
3/2017/0766	Removal of two existing cantilever roof structures and replace with single span roof, Yorkshire boarded down to eaves at both ends. Slate blue fibre sheets to be used for roof	Brungerley Farm Clitheroe Road Waddington
3/2017/0844	Erection of one two-storey building comprising 6 workshop/office space units with associated parking facilities	Chapel Hill Trading Estate Chapel Hill Longridge

374 APPEALS UPDATE

Application No and reason for appeal	Date Received/ Appeal Start Date	Site Address	Type of Appeal Procedure	Date of Inquiry/Hearing if applicable	<u>Progress</u>
3/2015/0393 R	10/08/16	Land west of Preston Road Longridge (Grimbaldeston Farm)	Inquiry	In abeyance until end of October 2017	Bespoke timetable
3/2017/0088 R	03/07/17	1 & 2 Abbeycroft The Sands Whalley	WR		Awaiting Decision
3/2017/0039 R	07/08/17	18 Netherwood Gardens Brockhall Village Langho	НН		Awaiting Decision
3/2016/1196 R	03/07/17	Lower Standen Farm Whalley Road Pendleton	WR		Awaiting Decision
3/2016/0708 R	10/07/17	The Dog and Partridge Public House, Tosside	Hearing	05/09/17	Appeal Dismissed 04/10/17
3/2016/0709 R	10/07/17	The Dog and Partridge Public House, Tosside	Hearing	05/09/17	Appeal Dismissed 04/10/17
3/2017/0029 R	24/07/17	Field at Hellifield Road, Gisburn	WR		Awaiting Decision
3/2017/0045 R	Awaiting start date from PINS	Newton Hall Newton in Bowland	WR (to be confirmed)		
3/2016/1202 R	17/08/17	Barn within the grounds of Greengore Farm	WR		Awaiting Decision
3/2017/0192 R	19/07/17	Countess Hey Elmridge Lane	WR		Awaiting Decision
3/2017/0308 R	10/08/17	Chipping Fields Fm Barn Back Lane	НН		Awaiting Decision
3/2017/0220 R	07/08/17	Chipping 2a Whittingham Road Longridge	WR		Awaiting Decision
Enforcemen t	Awaiting start date from PINS	Demesne Farm Newsholme Gisburn	Hearing (to be confirmed)		

Application No and reason for appeal	<u>Date</u> <u>Received/</u> <u>Appeal</u> Start Date	Site Address	Type of Appeal Procedure	Date of Inquiry/Hearing if applicable	<u>Progress</u>
3/2017/0441 R	Awaiting start date from PINS	19 Woodfield View Whalley	WR (to be confirmed)		
3/2017/0595 R	Cancelled by PINS	St Marys Community Centre Church Street Clitheroe			Incorrect appeal – legislation provides no right of appeal until TPO confirmed
3/2016/0999 R	Awaiting start date from PINS	Land at Dale View Billington	WR (to be confirmed)		
3/2016/0980 R	Awaiting start date from PINS	Land off Dale View Billington	WR (to be confirmed)		
3/2016/1192 R	Awaiting start date from PINS	Hammond Ground Whalley Road Read	Inquiry (to be confirmed)		

375 REVIEW OF FEES AND CHARGES

The Director of Resources submitted a report seeking Committee's approval and proposals to increase this Committee's fees and charges with effect from 1 April 2018. These proposals were the first stage in the review of the Committee's budget for the forthcoming 2018/2019 financial year. The Council's latest budget forecast allows for a 2% increase in the level of income raised from fees and charges and this review aims to increase budgeted income for 2018/2019 by this amount as a minimum. Last year when setting fees and charges for 2017/2018 there were some substantial increases approved with an overall increase of 10% being approved, which was later reduced to 8%.

The key messages from the Budget Working Group to officers and also for Committee to bear in mind when reviewing fees and charges were:

- Any charges should look to meet the cost of providing the services being used.
- As an absolute minimum all fees and charges should be increased by 2%.
- Where possible comparisons should be made to the charges being made by our neighbours in Lancashire ow wider if appropriate.
- A thorough review of services for areas where we are not currently charging should be made and a charge made where appropriate; as part of this review innovative ways of charging should be considered.

Committee were reminded that planning application fees are set nationally by the government. There was also a national requirement within the Building (Local Authority Charges) Regulations 2010 which states that charges for building regulation fees should be based on achieving a full cost recovery. Work on calculating these fees had been undertaken and proposed fees for 2018/2019 would be brought to the next meeting in November.

Discussions had been held between budget holders and financial services to enable the budget holder to propose a set of fees and charges for their services. The proposed set of fees and charges was set out for Committee's information which outlined two options; one which included an increase on pre-application advice and one that excluded it.

RESOLVED: That Committee approve the level of fees and charges to be levied for this Committee for 2018/2019 as outlined in the report at Annex 1 which included increasing the charges on pre-application advice.

376 CAPITAL PROGRAMME REVIEW AND NEW BIDS

The Director of Resources submitted a report recommending the proposed five year capital programme 2018/2019 to 2022/2023 for this Committee. There was originally one scheme already approved for 2018/2019 to 2021/2022 totalling £14.500. No further bids had been submitted for 2022/2023.

RESOLVED: That Committee

- 1. approve the proposed five year capital programme for 2018/2019 to 2022/2023; and
- 2. recommend to Policy and Finance Committee the future five year capital programme for this Committee.

377 PLANNING FOR THE RIGHT HOMES IN THE RIGHT PLACES: CONSULTATION PROPOSALS

The Chief Executive submitted a report informing Committee of the Department for Community and Local Government Consultation 'Planning for the Right Homes in the Right Place, Consultation Proposals' and the likely implications of these proposals on the authority.

The main elements of the consultation are:

- A proposed approach to a standard method for calculating housing need (including data for every authority on how many homes would be needed as a result of the approach);
- Improving how authorities work together in planning and housing (and other requirements) across boundaries;
- How the new approach can help authorities plan for needs of particular groups and support neighbourhood planning;

- Proposals for improving use of Section 106 Agreements in making the use of viability assessments simpler, quicker and more transparent; and
- Seeking further views on how homes can be built out more guickly.

Responses to the consultation must be made by Thursday, 9 November 2017 in the form of a response to an online questionnaire. The report outlined in some detail the proposed approach to calculating housing need, how the new approach would be implemented, benefits of the new approach, deviation from the new method, implications of a standardised approach for calculating the five year supply of housing and the housing delivery test, further comments on the proposed approach including guidance in relation to calculating economic uplift, statement of common ground, planning for a mix of housing needs, neighbourhood planning, the proposed approach to viability assessments and planning fees.

Once the consultation responses had been submitted it was the CLGs current intention to publish a revised national planning policy framework in early 2018 and following further consultation issue a revised NPPF in Spring 2018. If this timetable was adhered to any revised final NPPF would guide the review of the Core Strategy.

Committee discussed some of the consultation questions and the implications for the Council.

RESOLVED: That the response to the Consultation be delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with a small task and finish group, consisting of the Chairman of Planning and Development, Health and Housing, Economic Development Committees and the Chairman and Vice Chairman of Policy and Finance Committee, together with a Member of the Liberal Democrats.

378 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME UPDATE AND LOCAL PLAN REVIEW

The Chief Executive submitted a report informing Members of the updated Local Development Scheme and setting out the initial consideration and anticipated timeframes for a review of the Local Plan.

The Local Development Scheme is a statutory document that the Council has to have in place that is a public statement of the programme that the Council intend to take forward to deliver and keep up to date the Local Plan for the area. A copy of the LDS was attached for Members' information.

Once the HEDPD is adopted the Local Development Framework would be complete the Council would move towards a review of the Local Plan documents. The timetable set out in the LDS reflected the work necessary on the Local Development documents to undertake this review and meet the Council's commitments.

As part of the review process there would need to be a review of the existing evidence base, a detailed programme of work and funding implications would need to be developed.

RESOLVED: That Committee

- authorise the Chief Executive to publish the Local Development Scheme and progress work on the Local Plan Review in consultation with the Development Plan Working Group, keeping this Committee informed as appropriate;
- 2. ask the Budget Working Group to consider and monitor budget implications of the Local Development Scheme and to refer the matter to the Policy and Finance Committee to consider the necessary budgetary provisions.

379 CAPITAL MONITORING 2017/18

The Director of Resources submitted a report providing Members with information on the progress of the approved Planning and Development Committee 2017/18 Capital Programme for the period to the end of September 2017.

To date there have been no spend on the introduction of planning portal link to the planning application system and planning system update scheme. The scheme would not be able to be fully implemented in year as it would be 12 months before the whole M3 planning system will be migrated over to Assure.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

380 REVENUE MONITORING 2017/18

The Director of Resources submitted a report for Committee's information on the position for the first six months of this year's Revenue Budget as far as this Committee was concerned. The report outlined by Cost Centre and comparison between actual expenditure and the original estimate for this period and highlighted the variations, along with the budget holders' comments and agreed action plans.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

381 APPEALS

There were no appeals.

382 REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES

There were no reports from Representatives on Outside Bodies.

The meeting closed at 8.27pm.

If you have any queries on these minutes please contact John Heap (414461).